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3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

" Directors’ report

The Directors submit their report on 3i EFV GP Ltd (the “Company”) with the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Company was established on 29 June 2006 and is domiciled in England as a company under the
Companies Act 2006. The registered office of the Company is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.

Principal activity

The principal activity of 3i EFV GP Limited (the “Company”) is to act as General Partner of private equity
Limited Partnerships 3i Europartners Va LP and 3i Europartners Vb LP.

Development

There have been no changes in the activity of the Company in the year and the Directors do not foresee
any future changes.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company is a subsidiary of 3i Group plc (“3i"). 3i sets objectives, policies and processes for
managing and monitoring risk. These are outlined in the 31 March 2018 3i Group plc Annual Report
and Accounts.

Results and dividends
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year after tax amounted to €252,802 (2017: €165,076).

The Directors declared and paid a final dividend for the year of €600,000 {2017: €440,000).

Events after the balance sheet date

There have been no events since the balance sheet date.

Directors

The foilowing served as Directors throughout the year and to the date of this report except where
otherwise indicated:

lan Coaper (appointed on 19/12/2017)
Jasi Halai

Jonathan Murphy

Kevin Dunn

Matt Shelley (resigned on 7/12/2017)



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Directors’ report

Going concern

The Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and for at least twelve months. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis for preparing the financial statements.

Exemption from presenting a Strategic Report

The Directors have taken the exemption available under Section 414B of the Companies Act in not
presenting a Strategic Report.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Pursuant to s418(2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Directors confirms that: (a) so far as they
are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware; and (b) they have
taken all steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any reievant audit information
and to establish that the auditors are aware of such information.

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP remains in office as auditor of the Company in accordance with section 487(2) of
the Companies Act 2006.

By Qrder of the Board

Jasi Halai
Director

Registered Office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD

072 . August 2018



3iEFVGP Ltd No. 5840692

Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU). Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the profit or loss for that period.

in preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies apply them consistently;

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records, which are sufficient to show
and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The
Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements,



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i EFV GP Ltd

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i EFV GP Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2018 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in equity, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the Accounting policies A to | and the related notes 1
to 10. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its profit for the
year then ended;
e have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

s the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concemn
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i EFV GP Ltd

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the finrancial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

e the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemptions in preparing
the directors’ report and from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 3, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic altarnative but to do so.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i EFV GP Ltd

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Crold foug eop

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

Z  August 2018



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year to 31 March 2018
Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Revenue 1 5,071,739 8,105,716
Operating expenses 2 (4,818,152) (7,700,431)
Net interest expense (785) {1,240)
Profit before tax 252,802 404,045
Income taxes 4 - {238,969)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 252,802 165,076
All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations.
Statement of changes in equity
for the year to 31 March 2018
Notes Issued Retained Total equity
capital earnings
€ € €
Balance at 1 April 2016 1 683,581 683,582
Profit for the year - 165,076 165,076
Dividend paid 5 - (440,000) (440,000)
Total eguity at 31 March 2017 1 408,657 408,658
Balance at 1 April 2017 1 408,657 408,658
Profit for the year - 252,802 252,802
Dividend paid 5 - {600,000) (600,000)
Total equity at 31 March 2018 1 61,459 61,460

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the notes on pages 12 to 17 form an integral part of

these financial statements.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 56840692

Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
€ €

Assets
Curtent assets
Cash and cash equivalents 61,460 458,533
Total current assets 61,460 458,533
Total assets 61,460 458,533
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables 6 - (49,875) i
Total liabilities - (49,875)
Net liabilities - 408,658
Equity
Issued capital 7 1 1
Retained earnings 61,459 408,657
Total equity 61,460 408,658

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the notes on pages 12 to 17 form an integral part of
these financial statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors.

~C

Jasi Halai

Director

072 August 2018



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

' Statement of cash flows

for the year to 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Revenue collected 1 5,071,739 8,079,466
Bank interest paid (785) (1,240)
Operating expenses paid 2 (4,868,027) {7,625,618)
Net cash flow from operating activities 202,927 452,608
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid 5 (600,000) (440,000)
Net cash flow from financing activities (600,000) (440,000)
Net cash flow (397,073) 12,608
Opening cash and cash equivalents 458,533 445,925
Closing cash and cash equivalents 61,460 458,533

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the notes on pages 12 to 17 form an integral part of
these financial statements.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (*IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU
and in accordance and compliance with the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements
with periods commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginnihg on or after

IFRS9  Financial instruments o 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 7 - 1 January 2019

The Directors have performed an assessment and do not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16
will have a material impact on its results

B Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Company accounts are disclosed
below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which they specifically relate in
order to assist the reader’'s understanding. These policies have been consistently applied and apply to
all years presented.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with and in
compliance with the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements are presented in euros, the
functional currency of the Company, being the currency in which it operates and generates revenue
and incurs expenses.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimaies and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The most significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

D Revenue recognition Revenue comprises of Priority Profit Share from various Limited
Partnerships, and is recognised as services are provided and it is probable that amounts will be repaid.

E Operating expenses Operating expenses are charged to the Statement of comprehensive
income on an aceruals basis.

F Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position
comprise cash at bank.

G Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated
at fair value based on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services
received up to the Statement of financial position date.

10



3i EFV GP Ltd _ No. 5840692

Accounting policies

H Income taxes Income taxes represent the sum of the tax currently payable, and deferred tax. Tax
is charged or credited in the Statement of comprehensive income, except where it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also dealt with in equity.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. This may differ from the profit
included in the Statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit {'temporary differences’), and is accounted for using the Statement of
financial position liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxabie profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settied or the asset is realised using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Statement of financial position date.

| Dividends Dividends are recognised through equity in the period in which they are approved and
declared.

11



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Notes to financial statements

1 Revenue
2018 2017
€ €
Priority profit share 5,071,739 8,105,716
5,071,739 8,105,716
2 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Management fees 4,818,152 7,700,430
Bank charges - 1
4,818,152 7,700,431

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €5,134 (2017: €4,914) was bome by 3i pic, a fellow
subsidiary.

3 Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Company are aiso Directors of fellow subsidiaries and receive remuneration from
3i plc. The table below shows the total emoluments received by the Directors from the fellow subsidiary.

2018 2017
€ €
Salaries and benefits 1,167,343 1,701,909
Bonuses 461,090 488,403
Compensation for loss of office " 118,358 652,644
Share based payments 891,224 2,942,283
2,638,015 5,785,239

Emoluments, inciuding share based payments, attributable to the highest paid Director were €1,534,728
(2017; €3,475,948).

The Directors do not receive any emoluments from the Company and do not believe it is practicable to
apportion the above amounts to their setrvices as Directors of the Company. The Directors’ services to
the Company do not occupy a significant amount of their time.

No Directors (2017: nil) of the Company accrued retirement benefits under the 3i Group Pension Plan,
a defined benefit contributory scheme.

The Company's contribution to pension schemes on behalf of Directors was €nil for the year to 31 March
2018 (2017: €nil).

12



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

-3 Directors’ emoluments(continued)
The Directors are granted options in shares of 3i. The fair value for the services provided to the

Company by the Directors cannot be reliably estimated and as such no share-based payment charge
has been allocated to the Company.

4 Income taxes

2018 2017
€ €
Current tax
UK corporation tax - -
Deferred income taxes
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - 1,226,494
Adjustment for prior years - (935,643)
Effect of change in tax rate - {51,882)
Total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive ) 238,969

income

Reconciliation of total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive income

The tax charge for the year ended is different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK, currently
19% (2017: 20%), and the differences are explained below:

2018 2017
€ €

Profit before tax 252,802 404,045
Profit before tax multiplied by rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 19% (2017: 20%) 48,032 80.809
Effects of:
Utilisation of tax losses surrendered as group relief 915,598 956,838
Adjustment for prior years - {935,643)
Derecognition of deferred tax asset - 188,847
Non-taxable income {963,630) -
Effect of change in tax rate - (51,882)
:I'otal income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive - 238,969
income

13



3i EFV GP Ltd

4 Income taxes(continued)

Statement of

No. 5840692

Statement of

financial comprehensive
position income
2018 2018
€ €
Deferred income tax asset

Tax Losses - 985,765

Deferred income tax liability
Accrued priority profit share - (985,765)

Deferred income tax asset/(liability)

Deferred income tax charge / (credit) in the statement of
comprehensive income

Statement of

Statement of

financial comprehensive
position income
2017 2017
€ €
Deferred income tax asset

Tax Laosses 985,765 (746,796)

Deferred income tax liability
Accrued priority profit share (985,765) 985,765
Deferred income tax asset/(liability) - -
Deferred incoma tax charge / (credit} in the statement ) 238,969

of comprehensive income

At 31 March 2018, 3i EFV GP Limited had tax losses carried forward of €6,182,169 for which no deferred
tax asset has been recognised. It is considered uncertain that there will be sufficient taxable profits in
the future against which the associated deferred tax assets can be offset and therefore the assets have
not been recognised.

The UK Government announced as part of the Finance (No 2} Act 2015, which received Royal Assent
on 18 November 2015, that the main rate of corporation tax rate would be reduced from 20% to 19%
from 1 April 2017, As part of the Finance Act 2016, a further reduction to 17% (effective from 1 April
2020) was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016 and received Royal Assent on 15 September
2016. This will affect the rate at which future UK cash tax will be payable and the rate at which deferred
tax assets are expected to reverse.

14



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

- 5 Dividends paid and declared

2018 2017
€ €
Declared and paid during the year 600,000 440,000
600,000 440,000
6 Payables
2018 2017
€ €
Amounts owed to related parties - 49,875
- 49,875
7 Issued capital
Authorised
number of Amount
shares €
Allotted and called up ordinary shares of 1 1
£1 each (€1.3786)
At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 1 1

8 Parent undertaking and controlling party

The Company's immediate parent undertaking is 3i Holdings plc.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is 3i which is incorporated in the
United Kingdom and registered in Engiand and Wales. Copies of its group financial statements, which
include the Company, are available from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.

9 Related parties

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with related
parties. Those transactions with Directors of the Company are disclosed in note 3. There are no other
key management personnel. Each of these categories of related parties and their impact on the financial
statements is detailed below.

Income from Limited Partnerships

The Limited Partherships are related parties, being the entities for which the Cdmpany acts as General
Partner. Total revenue from Limited Partnerships, including the amaunt of accrued fees receivable at
the end of the vear, is detailed below:

156



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

2018 2017
Priority Accrued at  Priority Accrued at
Profit Share end of year Profit Share end of year
€ € € €
3i Europartners Va LP 2,405,292 - 3,844,248 -
3i Europartners Vb LP 2,666,447 - 4,261,468 -
5,071,739 - 8,105,716 -

9 Related parties (continued)

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Management fees

Total fees paid to 3i plc, which is appointed by the Company to manage certain Limited Partnerships,
including the amount of accrued fees due at the end of the year, are detailed below:

2018 2017
Management Accrued at Management Accrued at
Fees in Year end of year Fees in Year end of year
€ € € €
Management fees paid to 3i 4,818,152 - 7,700,430 49,875

plc

Included within payables is an amount of nil (2017: €49,875) owed to 3i plc in respect of accrued
management fees.

10 Financial risk management

The Company is a subsidiary of 3i. 3i sets objectives, policies and processes for managing and
monitoring risk as set out in the Directors' report in the 3i annual report. This note provides further
information on the specific risks faced by the Company.

Capital management

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity. There is sufficient capital in the Company to
cover liabilities and the Company is free to transfer capital to the parent company subject to maintaining
sufficient reserves to meet statutory obiigations. No significant constraints have been identified in the
past.

Credit risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant credit risk as amounts owed by the Company's
debtors are due from related parties as set out in note 9 and are repayable on demand.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed at the 3i level as discussed in the Directors’ report in the 3i annual report and
all of the Company's trade and other payables are repayable within one year.

16
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- Market risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant market risk as the Company does not hold fixed or
floating rate loans or liabilities or investments which are exposed to market fluctuations.

17
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31 Evurppartners Va LP LP11418

Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Europartners Va LP (the
“Partnership™} for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deais across all regions
in which 31 Group plc (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year before 346,641,953 448,198,870
carried interest expense

Total comprehensive income for the year 271,888,274 293,431,364

Net assets attributable to Partners 1,001,775,810 909,485,420

Total attributable to Partners 1,269,818,384 1,102,774,315

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by strong asset cash flows denved from peortfolio Income of €309,679 and proceeds on realisation of
€174,394 820 The Partnership also distributed €183,527,261 to its Partners Other contributing factors to
performance include the unreahsed gains on the value of the remaining investments of €358,597,008.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal nsks and uncertainties
facing the Parnership are considered to be the following:

e Market price risk

+ Currency risk

s Concentration nsk

+ Creditnsk

«  Liguidity risk

» [nterest rate risk

+ Capital management



31 Europartners Va LP LP11419

Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management frame work whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership's performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of nsk at a Partnership level. Detalls of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note &.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
e May2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SWIE 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members' report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 29 June 2006 and 1s domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16, Palace Street, London,
SW1E 5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 31 EFV GP Ltd

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deals across all regions
in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropriate circumstances

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and
for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no maternal events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there 1s no relevant audit infermation
of which the auditor is unaware, and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

Puring the year, Ernst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership 1n accordance with
clause 12.4 of the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA”") and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
16 May2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members' report and the
financial statements

The Manager 1s responsible for preparing the Members’ report, Strategic report and financral statements n
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Marager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (*IFRS™) as adopted by the European Union (“EU"} and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that peniod.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and expizined in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager 1s responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and cther irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have comphed
with the above requirements in prepanng the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i Europartners Va LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Europartners Va LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to N and the related notes 1 to 12. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of s
profit for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adepted by the European Union; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008 as applied to
qualifying partnerships

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical respeonsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part

16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the qualifying partnership's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in retation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report

to you where:

« the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

« the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified matenal uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authonsed for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6 other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infermation and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other in formation and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we dentify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there 1s a material
misstaterment in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information |If, based on the work
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Auditor’s report (continued)

we have performed, we conclude that there i1s a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying

partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

« the strategic report and the members' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying part nership and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the strategic report or members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you If, in our opinion:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are responsible

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether th e financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Counci's website at hitps://iwww.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Crfhff &L Kicny ey

Maximihano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

|6 May2018
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11419

Notes 2018 2017
€ €

Portfolio income 1 1,010,970 1,804,813
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 358,597,008 447 372 842
Realised profits over value on the disposal of 2
Investments 14,641,855 3,703,196
Gross investment return 374,249,833 452,980,851
Prionty profit share 10 (2,407,792) (3,846,749)
Operating expenses 3 (440,711) (423,775}
Net interest expense (88,071) (40,944)
Exchange movements (18,161) (121,908)
Withholding tax expense (24,653,145) (348,607)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the 346,641,953 448,198 870
year before carried interest expense
Carried interest expense 7 (74,753,679) (154,767 506)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the 271,888,274 293 431,364

year

All tems in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11419

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 1,316 44,722,738 864,761,366 909,485,420
Drawdowns from Partners - 3,929,377 - 3,929,377
Distributions to Partners - (48,652,115) {(134,875,146) {183,527,261)
1,316 - 729 886,220 729,887,536
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 271,888,274 271,888,274
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 1,316 - 1,001,774 .494 1,001,775,810
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Profit and
Contributions Loan account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 1,316 220,654,814 571,330,002 791,986,132
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,226,234 - 4,226,234
Distributions to Partners - {180,158,310) - (180,158,310)
1,316 44 722,738 571,330,002 616,054,056
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 293,431,364 293,431,364
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 1,316 44 722,738 864,761,366 409,485,420

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
Assets € €
Non-current assets

Investments 4

- Unquoted investments 1,266,495,309 1,085,924,030
Total non-current assets 1,266,495,309 1,085,924, 030
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,395,712 17,024,178
Receivables 5 100,749 -
Total current assets 3,496,461 17,024 178
Total assets 1,269,991 770 1,102,948,208
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carned interest payable 7 {268,042 ,574) (193,288,895)
Total non-current liabilities {268,042,574) {193,288,895)
Current liabilities
Payables 6 (173,386) (173,893)
Total current liabilities (173,386) (173,893)
Total liabilities {268,215,960) {193,462,788)
Net assets attributable to Partners 1,001,775,810 909,485,420
Represented by:
Capital contributions 1,316 1,316
Loan account - 44,722 738
Profit and ioss accounts 1,001,774,494 BG4, 761 366
Net assets attributable to Partners 1,001,775,810 906,485,420
Carred interest aliocation 268,042,574 193,288,895
Total attributable to Partners 1,269,818,384 1,102,774,316

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For on behalf of 31 Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
[6  May 2018

11
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11419

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 (5,839,015) (2,862,729)
Proceeds from investments 174,394,820 165,336,791
Portfelio income received 309,679 1,466,773
Bank interest received 2,042 10,755
Bank interest expense (90,113) (51,699)
Pricrity profit share paid (2,407,792) (3,846,749)
Operating expenses paid (375,089) (466,729)
Net cash flow from operating activities 165,994,522 189,586,413
Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns 3,920,377 4,226,233
Distributions paid (183,527,261} (180,158,310}
Net cash flow from financing activities (179,597 884) {175,932,077)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (13,603,362) 13,654,336
QOpening cash and cash equivalents 17,024178 3,462 589
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations {25,104) (92,747)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,395,712 17,024,178

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The |IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with penods
commencing on or after the following dates.

Effective for periods beginning on or after

IFRS9 Financial instruments o 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS16 = Leases N ) B 1 January 2019

The Manager does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 will have a matenal impact on its results

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the Note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These policies have been consistently applied and
apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and

distributions are denominated

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the apphcation of policies and reported
ameunts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
histoncal experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the penod in which the estimate i revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodologies for investments is disclosed in accounting policy E and discussed in Note 4.,
The methodology for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy N.

Carned interest payable is calculated based on the underiying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investments
are sold at therr fair values at the balance sheet date The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these porffolio investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in Note 7.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into sures at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair vaiue through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair
value In accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital (“IPEV™) valuation guidelines, with
reference to the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the pnincipal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. if the fairr value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above the fair value of the
loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investment, converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation date. Any foreign exchange
differences ansing between the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in Note
1.

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arnve at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial mstruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the following components:

| Reahsed profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

. Unrealised profils or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement n the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period converted into eurcs using the exchange rates
in force at the reporting date.

ll.  Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Dividends from equity investments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established, converted into euros using the
exchange rates in force when such rights are established.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relaton to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

14
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Accounting policies (continued)

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA The priority profit share is treated as an expense
In the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it 1s a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J Distributions Al! capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distnbutions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account untit the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss account s.
A distnbution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Pariners have subscribed to the Partnership in cornmitrents
represented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

L Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment They are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s any indication
of impairment. If any such indications exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected
discounted future cash flows and any changes in the level of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of
comprehensive income

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
oh the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date

N Carried interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner i1s entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions descrnbed in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, in cluding the
General Partner, has been repaid. Camed interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partner’s share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase In the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried interest expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued camed interest results from a
decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date

18
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Notes to the financial statements
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1 Portfolio income
2018 2017
€ €
Interest income 1,010,870 1,735,439
Dividend income - 169,374
1,010,970 1,904,813
2 Realised profits over value on the disposal of investments
Quoted Unquoted 2018
Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax - 199,207,850 199,207,890
Opening carrying value of disposed
Investments - (184,566,035) (184,566,035)
- 14,641,855 14,641,855
Quoted Ungquoted 2017
Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax 9,766,308 185,448,343 195,214,651
Opening carrying value of disposed
investments (9,440,529) (182,070,927) (191,511,456)
325,779 3,377,416 3,703,196
3 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Audit fees 13,691 10,543
Bank charges 422 781
Fund administration fees 28,218 34,560
Tax compliance fees 15,160 9,155
Annual investor meeting and Advisory Board expenses 92,814 23,551
Portfolio company related costs 205,954 233,481
AIFMD depository fees 72,284 98,202
Fund reporting fees 12,167 13,502
440,71 423,775

The auditor’s remuneration for the year was €13,691 (2017: €10,543)

16
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4 Investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €1,133,505,854 (2017: €909,599,296) and loans of
€132,989,455 (2017 €176,324,735)

The holding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It 1s not possible to identify with certainty that investments will be soid
within one year

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following
hierarchy:
Level Fair value input description Financial instruments

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets No Level 1 financial instruments

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted pnces included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments
that are observable either directly (i.e. as pnces) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market Unguoted equity instruments and loan
data instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Unqguoted investments - - 1,266,495,309 1,266,495 309
- - 1,266,455,309 1,266,495,309

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Unguoted investments - -

1,085,924,030

1,085,924,030

Total - -

1,085,824,030

4,085,924,030

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctiy classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. When an investment’s characteristics change during the financial
period and investments no longer meet the cntena of a given level, they are transferred into a more appropriate
level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting penod There were no transfers in or out of levei 3 in the
period (2017 nil).

17
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Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair value 1,085,924 030 817,258,614
Additions — cash 5,839,015 2,862,729
Additions - interest 7,814,214 8,654,450
— Of which capitalised at nil value (7,112,923) (8,158,055}
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (184,566,035) (182,066,550)
Fair value movement 358,597,008 447 372,842
Closing fair vaiue 1,266,495,309 1,085,924,030

A net profit of €374,249,833 (2017: €452 980,851) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
portfolio iIncome, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments and realised profits over value from the
disposal of investments from level 3 assets.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in the Portfolio
valuation - an explanation section. Of assets held at 31 March 2018, classified as Level 3, 73.32% were valued
using a multiple of eamings and the remaining 26 68% were valued using alternative valuation methodologies.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilites approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied to an multiple of eamings based valuation. The muitiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples. Companies
n the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are selected and then adjusted
for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value weighted average multiple
used when valuing the portfolio was 16.30x (2017 15.78x).

If the multiple used to value each unguoted investment valued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018
decreased by 5%, the investment portfolio would decrease by €67.61 million (2017 €59.82 million) or 7.28% (2017:
7 01%) If the multiple increased by 5% then the investment portfolio would increase by €67.61 million (2017:
€59.82 million} or 7 28% (2017: 7.01%).

Alternative valuation methodologies

There are a number of alternative investment valuation methodoiogies used by the Group, for reasons specific to
individual assets By value and at year end the following technigue was used 100% Imminent sale. If the value of
all of the investments under this methodology moved by 5%, this would have an impact on the investment portfolio
of €16.90 million (2017: €11.64 million} or 5% (2017: 5%).
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5 Receivables

LP11419

2018 2017
€ €
Other receivables 100,749 -
100,749 -
6 Payables
2018 2017
€ €
Accrued expenses 113,380 51,753
Other liability 60,006 122,140
173,386 173,893
7 Carried interest payable
2018 2017
€ €
Opening carried interest payable 193,288,895 38,521,389
Carried |nter§st payable rec;ogmsed in the Statement of 74,753,679 154,767,506
comprehensive income during the year
268,042,574 193,288,895
Of which. payable is greater than 1 year 268,042,574 193,288,895

Carned interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €288,294,336 (2017: €214,038,633).

A 5% increase or decrease in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio (including
those portfolic investments held by Investment entity subsidiaries) would result in a €11,775,280 increase or

decrease in carried interest payable.

8 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the

Partnership 1s charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price nsk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquichty risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk

Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership’s market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investrent, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price risk is analysed in Note 4.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency nsk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/GBP, EUR/SEK and EUR/USD At 31 March 2018, had
EUR strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held
constant, net assets attributable to Partners would have (decreased) / increased respectively by the amounts

shown in the following table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP (1,867) {3,564) (5,113)
SEK 796,496 1,520,584 2,181,707
usb 340 650 932
794,969 1,517,670 2,177,526
As at 31 March 2017 € € €
G8P 1,599 3,052 4,379
SEK 1,201,436 2,293,651 3,290,891
UsD 18,830 35,048 51,577
1,221,865 2,332,651 3,346,847

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were
€1,269,991,770 (2017 €1,102,948,208) and the total fiabilities {inciuding accrual for carried interest) were
€268,215,960 (2017 €193,462,788).

% of total Partnership assets 2018 2017
SEK 1.3% 23%
1.3% 2 3%

% of total Partnership liabilities 2018 2017
GBP 71 7% 6.1%
71 7% 6.1%

28.3% (2017 93.9%) of the Partnership’s liabilities were denominated in euros.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by gecgraphy, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in five portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materiaily and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the largest investment
This investment is concentrated in the non-food discount retall industry and thus the Partnership's performance will
be closely linked to the performance of this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse
developments affecting this industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of

the Partnership.

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process descrbed in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment portfolio
is based on the financial performance of the individual portfolic companies. For those assets that are not past due
it 15 believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership's investment. Where the portfclio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within the overall
assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach 1s adopted to ensure sufficient cash 1s available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from
investments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €35,096,938 (2017: €39,026,315)
which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €1,266,495,309 (2017: €1,085,924,030) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensunng that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fail due Liabilities
ansing from Carried interest payable will only crystallise if and when the performance conditions are met, and will
only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment of cash distnbution from underly ing assets,
which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meet them when they fall due (see accounting policy N).

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between more than 5
As at 31 March 2018 year 1-5years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 173,386 - - 173,386
173,386 - - 173,386

As at 31 March 2017

Other payables and accrued expenses 173,893 - - 173,893
173,893 - - 173,893

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €268,042 574 (31 March 2017: €193,288,895) has no stated
maturity as carried interest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with
certainty the timing of when the investments will be sold The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into
relevant maturity groupings

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate nsk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €1,001,775,810 (2017: €909,485,420) at the reporting date. There are no externally
imposed capital requirements on the Partnership To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner
may request addrional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or
investment purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income
yield. No changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital
during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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10 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements I1s detailed below.

Carried interest

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2018 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018 are set out in note 7.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a prionty profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a prionty profit share equal to 1 75% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. After the investment period expiry date, the prionty profit share is equal to 1 25% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acguisition cost of investments that have been realsed or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings pic, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Prionty profit share 2,407,792 3,846,749

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

Dunng the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i pic, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Recharged costs 226,489 314,865

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Related undertakings

The Partnership makes investments in the equity of unquoted and quoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating policies of that company. It is presumed that it
1s possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or equal to 20%. The total amounts
included for investments where the Partnership has significant inffluence but not control are as follows:

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Portfolio Income 1,010,970 1,245,148
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 97,424,818 52,874,489
Realised profits on the disposal of investments 12,486,994 6,128,150
Statement of financial position
Unquoted investments 378,232 033 355,168,206
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11 Related undertakings

The Compames Act 2006 as applicable to Quallfying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership's related undertakings and this
is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant heldings.
In this context, significant means a shareholding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominal value of any class of
shares.

The Partnership’s related undertakings at 31 March 2018 are listed below

Associates
Country of A
Description Holding / share class Address incorporation :::.It?\fi'tsal
or residence
: Investment
Chrysanthes 1 Sarl 21.67% of Ordinary shares 9 rue Sainte Zithe, L-2763 Luxembourg Holding
Luxembourg .
Vehicle
Svardvagen 3B, Danderyd, Investment
CneMed AB 21.61% of Ordinary shares 182 Sweden Halding
33 Sweden Vehicle
Scandiines Havneholmen 25, 8, Investrment
Holding ApS 22 1% of Ordinary shares  Kobenhavn V 1561. Denmark Holding
9 Ap Denmark Vehicle

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, joint venture s or other significant holdings.

12 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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3i Europartners Vb LP LP11420
Strategic report

The Directors of 3 Investments pic {the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Europartners Vb LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnarship is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deals across all regions
in which 3i Group pic ("3i") invests worldwide.

Tha main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year before 384,077,386 . 496,582,369
carried interest expense

Total comprehensive income for the year . 301,257,143 325,255,344

Net assets attributable to Partners 1,109,033,275 1,006,853,623

Total attributable to Partners 1,405,828,718 1,220,828,823

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Diractors of the Manager are satisfied with tha performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by strong asset cash flows derived from portfolio income of €343,268 and proceeds on realisation of
€193,310,080. The Parinership slso distributed €203,433,058 to its Partners. Other contributing factors to
performance include the unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investments of €397,491,781.

Future developments
The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnarship's risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

e Market price risk

e  Currency risk
Concentration risk

o  Credit risk

s Liquidity risk

*  Interest rate risk

« Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management frame work whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate atiractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty axposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Detaila of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 9.

For ang on behalf of 3i Investments pic

Jasi Halai
Director

& may 2018
Registered office:
16 Palace Street

London
SWIHE 8JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Mambers’ report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 29 June 2006 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16, Palace Street, London,
SWH1E 5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i EFV GP Ltd.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limitad Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

‘The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deals across all regions
in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in foliow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Partners' interests

A surmmary of movements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concemn

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and
for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that: {a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Emst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 12.4 of the Limited Partnership Agreement (“LPA"} and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For apd on behalf of 3i investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
(& Mmay 2018

Registared office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The members have appointed the manager to prepare the Strategic reporl, Members' report and the
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for pmparing the Members' report, Strategic raport and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
nat approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

in preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

salect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financia! statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the members.

The Manager is raesponsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient {o show and explain the
Partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any fime the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities. The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i Europartners Vb LP

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of 3i Europartners Vb LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which

comprise the Statament of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Pariners’' accounts, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash fiows, the accounting policies A to N and the related notes 1 to 12. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financral
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership's affairs as at ended 31 March 2018
and of its profit for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

s« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under these standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements sectiocn of cur report below. We are independent of the qualifying parinership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report ‘and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyona other than the gualifying partnership's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report

to you where:

« the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is hot appropriate; or

= the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concem basis of accounting for a period of at ieast twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6 other than
the financial stetements and our auditer's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whethér there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information, If, based on the work
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Auditor’'s report (continued)

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying

partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statemants;

e the strategic report and the members' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course

of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the strategic report or members’ report.

Wa have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to quaiifying
pantnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

+« cenain disclosures of members' remunaration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members
As explained more fuilly in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are responsiblie

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fa ir view, and for
such intemnal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

In praparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership's ability to
continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease cperations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of ths financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at hitps://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

£ﬂ'u{ 7— d€ bvtf (f‘-’fo

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

f 6 May 2018



3i Europartners Vb LP LP11420

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Portfolio income 1 1,120,623 2,111,702
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 397,491,781 495,861,917
Realised profits over value on the disposal of 2
investments ’ 16,229,541 4,059,024
Gross investment return 414,841,945 502,032,643
Priority profit share 10 (2,668,947) (4,263,967)
Operating expenses 3 {655,013} (620,356)
Net interest expense (90,868) (41,243)
Exchange movements (22,649) (138,289)
Withholding tax expense (27,327,082) (386,419)
Profit and Total comprehensive Income for the 384 077,386 496,582,369
year before carried intorest expense
Carried interest expense 7 (82,820,243) {171,327,025)

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the 301,257,143 325,255,344
year for the year .

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11420

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € ¢ €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 1,459 49 575,361 g57,276,803 1,006,853,623
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,355,567 - 4,355 667
Distributions to Partners - (53,930,928) (149,502,130} {203,433,058)
1,459 - 807,774,673 807,776,132
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 301,257,143 301,257,143
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 1,459 - 1,109,031,816 1,109,033,275
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Profit and
Contributions Loan account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,459 244 589,800 632,021,459 876,612,718
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,684,621 - 4,684,621
Distributions to Partners - (199,699,060) - (199,699,060)
1,459 49,575,361 632,021,459 681,598,279
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 325,255,344 325,255,344
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 1,459 49,575,361 957,276,803 1,006,853,623

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

LP11420

Notes 2018 2017

Assets € €
Non-current assets

Investments 4

- Unquoted investments 1,403,858,126 1,203,701,162

Total non-current assets 1,403,858,126 1,203,701,162
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,227994 17,476,065
Receivables 5 111,685 -
Total current assets 2,339,679 17,476,065
Total assets 1,406,197,805 1,221,177,227
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Carried interest payable 7 (296,795,443) (213,975,200)
Total non-current liabilities (296,795,443) (213,975,200)
Current liabillties

Payables 6 (369,087) (348,404)
Total current liabilities {369,087) (348,404)
Total liabilities (297,164,530) (214,323,604)
Net assets attributable to Partners 1,109,033,275 1,006,853,623
Represented by:

Capital contributions 1,459 1,459
Loan account - 49,575,361
Profit and loss accounts 1,108,031 816 957,276,803
Net assets attributable to Partners 1,108,033,275 1,006,853,623
Carried interest allocation 296,795,443 213,875,200
Total attributable to Partners 1,405,828,718 1,220,828,823

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager,

For on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
(6 May2018

11
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11420

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 (6,472,323) (3,173,232)
Proceeds from investments 193,310,080 216,445,306
Portfolio income received 343,268 1,625 954
Bank inierest received 2,415 12,968
Bank interest expense (93,282) (54,211)
Priority profit share paid (2,668,947) (4,263,967)
Operating expensas paid (565,733) (695,976)
Net cash flow from operating activities 183,855,478 209,896,842
Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns 4,355,567 4,684,621
Distributions paid (203,433,058) (199,699,060)
Net cash flow from financing activities (199,077,491) (195,014,439)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (15,222,013) 14,882,403
Opening cash and cash equivalents 17,476,065 2,698,735
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (26,058) (105,073)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,227,994 17,476,065

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by tha International Accounting Standards Board (IASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretai:ions not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates:

"~ Effective for periods beginning on or after

IFRS & Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

e e — - - -

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Manager does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 wili have a material impact on its results.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies appiied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the Note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These paolicies have been consistently applied and
apply to all years presanted.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both cument and future periods. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodologies for investments is disclosed in accounting policy E and discussed in Note 4.
The methodology for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy N.

Carried interest payable is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investiments
are sold at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these portfolio investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair vatuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in Note 7.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
transiated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
considaration given. Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair
value in accordance with the Intamational Private Equity and Venture Capital (IPEV™) valuation guidelines, with
reference to the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement.

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal vatue of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any inferest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value® is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. Thase transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above the fair value of the
loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investment, converted intc euros using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation date. Any foreign exchange
differences arising batween the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in Note
1.

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed intc
the following components:

Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

Il.  Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carmying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting pariod converted into euros using the exchange rates
in force at the reporting date.

lll. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probabile that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Dividends from equity investments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when
the shareholders' rights to receive payment have been established, converted into euros using the
exchange rates in force when such rights are established.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only racognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

14
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Accountiﬁg policies (continued)

H Priority profit share A pricrity profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

I Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at cal! with financial institutions.

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss ac counts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and lcan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

L Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accountad for under & separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indications exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected
discounted future cash fiows and any changes in the level of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of
comprehensive incoma.

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered 1o be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

N Carried interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitied to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions deacribed in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participaton for all Partners, inclu ding the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Pariner's share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflact
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

Anincrease in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried interest expense
in the Statament of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carried interest resuits from
decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

15
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Portfolio income

2018 2017

€ €

Interest income 1,120,623 1,923,957
Dividend income - ) 187,745
1,120,623 2,111,702

2 Realised profits over value on the disposal of investments

Quoted Unquoted 2048
Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax - 220,814,038 220,814,038
Opening carrying value of disposed
investments - (204 584,497) (204,564,497)
- 16,229,541 16,229,541
Quoted Unquoted 2017
Investments investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax 10,825,576 205,485 177 216,310,752
Opening camrying value of disposed
investments (10,464,465) (201,787,263) (212,251,728)
361,110 3,697,914 4,059,024
3 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Audit fees 13,691 10,543
Bank charges 1,192 1,441
Fund administration fees 31,278 45,188
Tax compliance fees 194,694 172,254
Annual investor meeting and Advisory Board expenses 101,499 17,986
Portfolio company related costs 226,890 262,858
AIFMD depository fees 72,284 98,202
Fund reporting fees 13,485 11,884
655,013 620,356
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4 Investments '
The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €1,256,448,066 (2017: €1,008,256,571) and loans of
€147 410,080 (2017: €195,444 591).

The heiding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possibie to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following
hisrarchy:

Level
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets

Fair value input description Financial instruments

No Level 1 financial instruments

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments
that are observable either diractly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market
data

Unquoted equily instruments and Ioan<
instruments

The Partnership's invastments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

< ¢ € €

Unquoted investments - - 1,403,858,126 1,403,8568,126
- - 1,403,858,126 1,403,858,126

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € 4 €

Unquoted investments - - 1,203,701,162 1,203,701,162

Total ' -

1,203,701,162

1,203,701,162

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investrments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Lavel 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value authorised above. When an investment's characteristics change during the
financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of
level 3 in the peried (2017 nil).
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4 Investments (continued)

Level 3 fair value reconclliation

LP11420

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair value 1,203,701,162 905,899,632
Additions — cash 6,472,323 3,173,232
Additions — interest 8,661,041 9,550,167
— Of which capitalised at nil value (7,883,684) (9,001,374)
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (204,584, 497) (201,782,412)
Fair value movement 397,491,781 485,861,917
Closing fair value 1,403,858,126 1,203,701,162

A net profit of €414,841,945 (2017: €502,032,643) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
portfolio income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments and realised profits over value from the

disposal of investments from level 3 assets.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in the Portfolio
valuation — an explanation section Of assets hefd at 31 March 2018, classified as Level 3, 73.32% were valued
using a multiple of eamings and the remaining 26.68% were valued using altemative valuatiocn methodologies .

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial

position.
Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied to a multiple of eamings based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multipies.
Companies in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are sel ected
and then adjusted for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value
weighted average multiple used when valuing the portfolio was 16.30x (2017: 15.78x). If the multiple used to

value each unquoted investment valued on an eamings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018 decreased by 5%,
the investment portfolio would decrease by €74.94 million (2017: €66.30 million) or 7.28% (2017: 7.01%]. If the
multiple increased by 5% then the investment portfolio would increase by €74.94 million (2017: €66.31 million)

or 7.28% (2017: 7.01%).

Altemnative valuation methodologies

There are a number of alternative investmant valuation methodologies used by the Group, for reasons specific to
individual assets. By value and at year end the following techniques were used: 100% Imminent sale. If the value
of all of the investments under this methodology moved by 5%, this would have an impact on the investment

portfolio of €18.73 million (2017: €12.90 million) or 5% (2017: 5%).
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5 Receivables

2018 2017
€ €
Other receivables 111,685 -
111,685 -
6 Payables
2018 2017
€ €
Accrued expenses 302,982 213,850
Other Liability 66,105 134,554
369,087 348,404
7 Carried interest payable
2018 2017
€ €
Opening carried interest payable 213,975,200 42 648,175
Carried |nter§st ‘payable regogmsed in the Statement of 82,820,243 171,327,025
comprehensive incoma during the year
296,795,443 213,975,200
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 296,795,443 213,975,200

Carried interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the camied interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €319 219,607 (2017: €236,945,631).

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investmant portfolio (including those portfolio
investmeants held by Investment entity subsidiaries) would result in a €13,052,415 increase in carried interest
payable.

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all of individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would result in a
€13,052,415 decrease in carried interest payable.

8 Taxation
No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no lisbility to taxation. Any taxation arising on the

income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, cummency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due 1o the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership's investments are suscaptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership's market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership's management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price risk is analysed in Note 4,

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/GBP, EUR/SEK and EURAJSD. At 31 March 2018, had
EUR strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held
constant, net assets attributable to Partners would have (decreased) / increased respectivaly by the amounts
shown in the following table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 < € €
GBP {1.552) {2,964) (4,252}
SEK 882,713 1,685,179 2,417 866
uso 759 1,449 2,080
881,920 1,683,664 2,415,694
As at 31 March 2017 € € €
GBP 1,743 3,328 4774
SEK 1,331,521 2,541,996 3,647,211
UsD 14,764 28,186 40,441
1,348,029 2,573,508 3,692,427

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership's total assets were
€1,406,197,805 (2017: €1,221,177,277) and the total liabilities (inciuding accrual for carried interest) were
€297,164,530 (2017 €214,323,604).

% of total Partnership assots 2018 2017
SEK ’ 1.3% 2.3%
1.3% 2.3%

% of total Partnership liabilities 2018 2017
GBP 43.1% 3.0%
usbD 36.3% 38.0%
79.4% 41.0%

20.6% (2017: 59.0%) of the Partnership's liabilities were denominated in euros.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in five portfolic investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affacted by the unfavourable performance of the largest invesiment.
This investment is concentrated in the non-food discount retail industry and thus the Parinership's performance will
be closely linked to the performance of this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse
developments affecting this industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is tha potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership's investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment portfolic
is based on the financial performance of the individual porifolio companies. For those assets that are not past due
it is believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership’s investmant. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in cradit risk is included within the overall
assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calis from Partners and the retention of proceads from
investiments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €38,903,733 (2017 €43,259,300)
which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €1,403 858,126 (2017: €1,203,701,162) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Parinership and short term liguidity needs, as they fall due. Liabilities
arising from Carried interest payable will only crystallise if and when the performance conditions are met, and will
only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment of cash distribution from underlying assets,
which ensures that sufficient assats will be available to meet them when they fall due {see accounting policy N),

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financia! position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.
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Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

leas than 1 betweean more than 5
As at 31 March 2018 year 1-5years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 369,087 - - 369,087
369,087 - - 369,087

As at 31 March 2017

Other payables and accrued expenses 348,404 - - 348,404
348,404 - - 348,404

Carried interast payable greater than one year of €296,795,443 (31 March 2017: €213,875,200) has no stated
maturity as camied interest results from invesiment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with
certainty the timing of when the investments will be sold. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into
relevant maturity groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investrments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €1,109,033,275 (2017: €1,006,853,623) at the reporting date. There are no externally
imposed capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner
may request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or
investment purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income
yield. No changes wene made in the Partnership's objectives, policies or processes for the management of capiial
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

10 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried interost

The Partnership pays caried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Parinership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2018 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018 are set out in note 7.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 1.75% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
{o the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. After the investment period expiry date, the priority profit share is equal to 1.25% of the
aggregale acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.
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2018 2017

Statement of comprehensive income € €

Priority profit share 2,668,947 4,263,967
Statement of financial position

Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income < €
Recharged costs 287,200 332,451

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Related undertakings

The Partnership makes investments in the equity of unguoted and quoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating policies of that company. It is presumed that it
is possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or equal to 20%. The total amounts
included for investments where the Parinership has significant influence but not control are as follows:

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Portfolio Income 1,120,623 1,380,199
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 107,992,446 58,606,666
Realised profits on the disposal of investments 13,841,362 6,715,921
Statement of financial position
Unguoted investments 419,251,940 393,685,851
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11 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership’s related undertakings and this
is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings.
In this context, significant means a shareholding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominal value of any class of

shares.

The Partnership’s related undertakings at 31 March 2018 are listed below.

LP11420

Associates
Country of .
Description Holding / share class Address incorporation ::;:Iit';al
or residence ~
. . " Investment
Chrysanthes 1 Sarl  24.02% of Ordinary shares 0 r@ Sainte Zithe, 1-2763 | onhourg  Holding
Luxembourg .
Vehicle
Svardvagen 3B, Danderyd, Investment
CneMed AB 23.95% of Ordinary shares 182 Sweden Holding
33 Sweden Vehicle
Scandlines Havneholmen 25, 8. Investment
Holding ApS 25.06% of Ordinary shares  Kobenhavn V 1561. Denmark Holding
ng Denmark Vehicle

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, joint ventures or other significant holdings.

12

Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc {the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Europartners Vb LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deals across all regions
in which 3i Group plc (“3i") invests woridwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year before 384,077,386 . 496,582,369
carried interest expense

Total comprehensive income for the year . 301,257,143 325,255,344

Net assets attributable to Partners 1,109,033,275 1,006,853,623

Total attributable to Partners 1,405,828,718 1,220,828,823

The resutts for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by strong asset cash flows derived from portfoiio income of €343,268 and proceeds on realisation of
€193,310,080. The Partnership aiso distributed €203,433,058 to its Partners. Other contributing factors to
performance include the unrealised gains on the value cf the remaining investments of €397,481,781.

Future developments
The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Parinership’s risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Parinership are considered to be the following:

s  Market price risk

e  Currency risk

s  Concentration risk

o  Credit risk

o  Liquidity risk

s Interest rate risk

» Capital management
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Strategi¢ report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management frame work whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Parinership’s performance objectives, being to
generats attractive risk-adjusted retums to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 9.

For ang on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

b may 2018
Registered office:
16 Palace Street

London
SW1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Mambers present the Members' report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 29 June 2006 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16, Palace Strest, Londan,
SW1E 5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i EFV GP Ltd.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deals across all regions
in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in foilow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individua!
investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short tarm.
Partners' interests

A summary of mevements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Pariners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concemn

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and
for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit informnation
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken alt steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Ernst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 12.4 of the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA") and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For apd on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
(& May 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 raquires the members to prepare financial statements for each
financiat year. The members have appointed the manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members’ report and the
financial statements. -

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Members' report, Strategic report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has slacted to prapare the financial statements in accordanca with International Financiai Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union (“EU") and applicable law. Under law tha Manager must
not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In prebaring these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disciosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prapare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the members to fuifil the below responsibilities of the members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient o show and explain the
Partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerghips by The Parinerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities. The Manager confirns that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor's report to the Members of 3i Europartners Vb LP

Opinion
Weae have audited the financial statements of 3i Europartners Vb LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which

comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to N and the related notes 110 12. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union.

in our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the quakfying partnership’s affairs as at ended 31 March 2018
and of its profit for the year then ended,;
+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermnational Standards on Auditing (UK} (1ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under these standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfited our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion .

Use of our report

This report is made solely o the qualifying partnership's members, ag a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of tha Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the qualifying partnership’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report'and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone cther than the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Congclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respact of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report

to you where:

« the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

« the members have not disclosed in the financial stataments any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the quallfying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6 other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this repert, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staternents, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material migstatements, we are required to determine whethéer there is a material
misstatement in the financial statemants or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
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Auditor’s report (continued)

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying

partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

» the strategic report and the members’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by axception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the strategic report or members’ report,

Wa have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of members' remunaration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members

As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such intemal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclesing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our apinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will atways detect a material misstatement when it axists. Missiatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at https://www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's raport.

Ep'nf f £ 5&/79 [

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behaif of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

] & May 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Portfolio income ' 1 1,120,623 2,111,702
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 397,491,781 495 861,917
Realised profits over value on the disposal of 2
investments : 16,229 541 4,059,024
Gross investment return 414,841,945 502,032,643
Priority profit share 10 {2,668,947) (4,263,967)
Operating expenses 3 (655,013) (620,356)
Net interest expense (90,868) {41,243)
Exchange movemants (22,649) (138,289)
Withholding tax expense (27,327,082) (386,419)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the 384,077,386 496,582,369
year before carried intorest expense
Carried interest expense 7 (82,820,243) (171,327,025)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the 301,257,143 325,255,344

year for the year

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11420

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Qpening balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,459 49,575,361 957,276,803 1,006,853,623
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,355,567 - 4,355,567
Distributions {0 Partners - (53,930,928) {149,502,130) {203,433,058)
1,459 - 807,77{,673 807,776,132
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - . 301,257,143 301,257 143
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 1,459 - 1,109,031,816 1,109,033,275
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Profit and
Contributions Loan account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners® accounts 1,459 244,589,800 632,021,459 876,612,718
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,684,621 - 4,684,621
Distributions to Partners - {199,699,060) - {199,699,060)
1,459 49 575,361 632,021,459 681,588,279
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 325,255,344 325,255,344
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 1,459 49 575,361 957,276,803 1,006,853,623

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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.Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017

Assets € €
Non-current assets

Investments 4

- Unquoted investments 1,403,858,126 1,203,701,162

Total non-current assets 1,403,858,126 1,203,701,162
Current assets .

Cash and cash equivalents 2,227,994 17,476,065
Receivables 5 111,685 -
Tota] current assets 2,339,679 17,476,065
Total assets 1,4086,197,805 1,221,177 227
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Carried interest payable 7 (296,795,443) (213,875,200)
Total non-current liabilities {296,795,443) (213,975,200)
Currgnt liabillties

Payables ' 6 (369,087} (348,404)
Total current liabilities {369,087) (348,404)
Total liabilities (297,164,530) (214,323,604)
Net assets attributable to Partners 1,109,033,275 1,006,853,623
Represented by:

Capital contributions 1,459 1,459
Loan account - 49,575,361
Profit and loss accounts 1,109,031,816 957,276,803
Not assets attributable to Partners 1,109,033,275 1,006,853,623
Carmied interest allocation 296,795,443 213,975,200
Total attributable to Pariners 1,405,828,718 1,220,828,823

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 24 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.
For on behalf of 3i investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
! b May 2018

11
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11420

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 (6,472,323) (3,173.232)
Proceeds from investments 193,310,080 216,445,306
Portfolic income received 343,268 1,625,954
Bank interest received 2,415 12,968
Bank interest expense (63,282) (54,211)
Priority profit share paid (2,668,947) {4,263,967)
Operating expenses paid {565,733) (695,976)
Net cash flow from operating activities 183,855,478 209,896,842
Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns 4,355,567 4,684,621
Distributions paid (203,433,058} (199,699,060)
Net cash flow from financing activities (199,077,491} (195,014,439)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (15,222,013) 14,882,403
Opening cash and cash equivalents 17,476,065 2,698,735
Effect of axchange rate fluctuations (26,058) (105,073}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,227,994 17,476,065

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 10 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Parinership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and Interpretaﬁons not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates.

Effective for periods beginning an or after

IFRS 9 Financial instruments . 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

———— e e — -

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Manager does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 wiil have a material impact on its resuits.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the praparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the Note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These policies have been consistently applied and
apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have bean prepared on a going concem basis and are presented in suros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumgptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodologies for investments is disclosed in accounting policy E and discussed in Note 4.
The methodology for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy N.

Carried interest payable is caiculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investments
are sold at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these portfolic investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above, The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in Note 7.

The Manager has concluded that the Parinership continues to meset the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating retumns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

13
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Accounting policies {continued)

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the clesing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency fransactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair
value in accordance with the Intamational Private Equity and Venture Capital ("IPEV™) valuation guidelines, with
reference to the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement.

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. If the fair vaiue of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” Is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an invastrent is subsequently assassed to be above the fair value of the
loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investment, converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation date. Any foreign exchange
differences arising between the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in Note
1.

Loans and equity are valuad together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the following components:

Reazlised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its camying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

II.  Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investmants are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period converted into eurcs using the exchange rates
in force at the reporting date. .

. Portfolio income is income that is diractly related to the return from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there wili be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Dividends from equity investments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when
the shareholders' rights to receiva payment have been established, converted into euros using the
exchange rates in force when such rights are established.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

14
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Accounting policies (continued)

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Pariner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no reccurse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash squivalents in the Statement of financia! position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
madae in accordance with the LIPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss ac counts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and ioan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown nofice is issued by the Manager.

L Recoivables Assels, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indications exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected
discounted future cash flows and any changes in the levet of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of
comprahensive income.

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

N Carried interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entiled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Pariners, inclu ding the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partner's share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflact
the likely actual cash payment date, which may ba materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carned interest expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carried interest results from a
decrease in carried interast due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Portfolio income
2018 2017
€ €
Interest income 1,120,623 1,923,957
Dividend income - 187,745
1,120,623 2,111,702

2 Realised profits over value on the disposal of investments

Quoted Unquoted 2018
Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Praceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax - 220,814,038 220,814,038
Opening carrying value of disposed
investments - (204,584,457) (204,584,487)
- 16,229,541 16,229,541
Quoted Unquoted 2017
Investments investments Total
L | € €
Praceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax 10,825,576 205,485,177 216,310,752
Opaning camying value of disposed
investments (10,464 ,465) (201,787,263) (212,251,728)
361,110 3,697,914 4,059,024
3  Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Audit fees 13,691 10,543
Bank charges 1,192 1,441
Fund administration fees 31,278 45,188
Tax compliance fees 194,694 172,254
Annual investor meeting and Advisory Board expenses 101,499 17,986
Portfolio company related costs 226,890 262,858
AIFMD depository fees 72,284 98,202
Fund reporting fees 13,485 11,884
655,013 620,356

16
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4 investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €1,256,448,066 (2017: €1,008,256,571) and Ioans of
€147 410,080 (2017 €195,444, 591).

The holding period of the Partnership's investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following
hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets No Level 1 financial ingtruments

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable seither directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

No Level 2 financial instruments

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market Unquoted equity instruments and loan
data instruments

The Partnership’s investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

2018 2018 2018 2018

Lovel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total

€ < € €

Unquoted investments - - 1,403,858,126 1,403,858,126
- - 1.403,858,126 1,403,858,126

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ ¢ € €

Unquoted investments - - 1,203,701,162 1,203,701,162
Total - - 1,203,701,162 1,203,701,162

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value authorised above. When an investment’'s characterigtics change during the
financial period and investments n¢ longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate lavel at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of
level 3 in the period (2017: nil).
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4 Investments (continued)

Leovel 3 fair value reconcliliation

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair value 1,203,701,162 905,899,632

Additions - cash 6,472,323 3,173,232

Additions - interest 8,661,041 8,550,167
— Of which capftalised at nil value (7.883,684) (9,001,374)
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (204,584 497) {201,782,412)

Fair value movement 397,481,781 495,861,917

Closing fair value 1,403,858,126 1,203,701,162

A net profit of €414,841,945 (2017: €502,032,643) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
portfolio income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments and realised profits over value from the

disposal of investments from level 3 assets.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in the Portfolio
valuation -- an explanation section. Of assets held at 31 March 2018, classified as Level 3, 73.32% were valued
using a multiple of earnings and the remaining 26.68% were valued using alternative valuation methodologies .

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.
Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valugtion multiple is the main assumption applied to a multiple of eamings based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples.
Companies in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are sel ected
and then adjusted for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value
weighted average multiple used when valuing the portfolio was 16.30x (2017: 15.78x). If the multiple used to
value each unquoted investment valued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018 decreased by 5%,
the investment portfalio would decrease by €74.94 million (2017: €68.30 million) or 7.28% (2017: 7.01%). If the
multiple increased by 5% then the investment portfolio would increase by €74.94 million (2017: €66.31 million)
or 7.28% (2017: 7.01%).

Alternative valuation methodologies

There are a number of alternative investment valuation methodologies used by the Group, for reasons specific to
individual assets. By value and at year end the following techniques were used: 100% Imminent sale. If the value
of all of the investments under this methodology moved by 5%, this would have an impact on the investment
portfolio of €18.73 million (2017: €12.90 million) or 5% (2017: 5%).
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5 Receivables

2018 2017
€ €
Other receivabies 111,685 -
111,685 -
6 Payables
2018 2017
€ €
Accrued expenses 302,982 213,850
Other Liability 66,105 134,554
369,087 348,404
7 Carried interest payable
2018 2017
€ €
Opening carried interest payabie 213,975,200 42,648,175
Carried lnterPst Payabla rec-;ognlsed in the Statement of 82,820,243 171,327,025
comprehensive income during the year
296,795,443 213,975,200
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 296,795,443 213,975,200

Carried intarest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially iater than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €319,219,607 (2017: €236,945,631).

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio (including those portfolio
invesiments held by Investment entity subsidiaries) would result in a €13,052,415 increase in carried interest
payable.

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all of individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would result in a
€13,052,415 decrease in carried interest payable.

8 Taxation
No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the

income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the petformance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are suscsptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate, The Partnership’'s market risk is reguladdy managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership's management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price rigk is analysed in Note 4.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency transiation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/GBP, EUR/SEK and EUR/USD. At 31 March 2018, had
EUR strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all cther variables held
constant, net assets attributable to Pariners would have (decreased) / increased respectively by the amounts
shown in the following table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP {1,552) {2,964) (4,252)
SEK 882,713 1,685,179 2,417,866
usD 759 1,449 2,080
881,920 1,683,664 2,415,684
As at 31 March 2017 € € €
GBP 1,743 3,328 4774
SEK 1,331,521 2,541,996 3,647,211
usbD 14,764 28,186 40,441
1,348,029 2,573,509 3,692,427

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign cumrency exchange rates with
regard to the Parnership’s assets and liabiliies at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were
€1,406,197 805 (2017: €1,221,177,277) and the total liabilities (including accrual for carried interest) were
€297,164,530 (2017: €214,323,604).

% of total Partnership assets 2018 2017
SEK 1.3% 23%
1.3% 23% -
% of total Partnership liabilities 2018 2017
GBP 43.1% 3.0%
usoD 36.3% 38.0%
79.4% 41.0%

20.6% (2017: 59.0%) of the Partnership's liabilities were denominated in euros.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in five portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the largest investment.
This investment is concentrated in the non-food discount retail industry and thus the Partnership’s performance will
be closely linked to the performance of this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse
developments affecting this industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the invesiment portfolio
is based on the financial performance of the individual portfolic companies. For those assets that are not past due
it is believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership's investment. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within the overall
assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Parinership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from
investments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €38,903,733 (2017: €43,259,300)
which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Parinership held €1,403,858,126 {2017: €1,203,701,162) in investments that it considered 1o be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds axist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurmed by the operating activities of the Parinership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due. Liabilities
arising from Carried interast payable will only crystallise if and when the performance cenditions are met, and will
only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment of cash distribution from underlying assets,
which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meet them when they fall due (see accounting policy N).

The following table analyses the Partnership’s fiabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
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Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between more than §
As at 31 March 2018 year 1-5years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expensas 369,087 - - 359,087
369,087 - - 369,087

As at 31 March 2017

Other payables and accrued expenses 348,404 - - 348,404
348,404 - - 348,404

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €296,795,443 (31 March 2017 €213,975,200) has no stated
maturity as carried inferest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with
certainty the timing of when the investments will be soki. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into
relevant maturity groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investmants in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans,

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, ioan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €1,109,033,275 (2017: €1,006,853,623) at the reporting date. There are no externally
imposed capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Generai Partner
may request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or
investrnant purposaes and distribute capital back to the Pariners on the sale of investments and receipt of income
yield. No changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capitat
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

10 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried intergst

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2018 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018 are set cut in note 7.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equsl to 1.75% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership’s activities. After the investment period expiry date, the priority profit share is equal to 1.25% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period,

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.
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2018 2017

Statement of comprehensive income € €

Priority profit share 2,668,947 4,263,967
Statoment of financial position

Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statemeant of comprehensive income € L
Recharged costs 287,200 332,151

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Related undertakings

The Parinership makes investments in the equity of unquoted and quoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating policies of that company. it is presumed that it
is possibie to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or equal to 20%. The total amounts
included for investments where the Parinership has significant influsnce but not control are as follows:

2018 2017
Statement of compreheansive income € €
Portfolio Income 1,120,623 1,380,199
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 107,992,446 58,606,666
Realised profite on the disposal of investments 13,641,362 6,715,921
Statement of financial position
Unquoted investments 419,251,840 393,685,851
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11 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership’s related undertakings and this
is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings.
In this context, significant means a sharehoiding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominal value of any class of

shares.

The Pa}tnership's reiated undertakings at 31 March 2018 are listed below.

LP11420

Associates
Country of .
Description Holding / share class Address Incorporation apfi:‘:l:;a'
or residence L
N Tnvestmant
Chrysanthes 1Sad  24.02% of Ordinary shares 0 'u@ Sainte Zithe, L-2763 \ \\umhourg  Holding
Luxembourg .
Vehicle
Svardvagen 3B, Danderyd, Investment
OneMed AB 23.95% of Ordinary shares 182 Sweden Holding
33 Sweden Vehicle
Scandlines _ Eavne:olme\? 12!‘?6 18 Invee_‘.tment
Holding ApS 25.06% of Ordinary shares obenhavn . Denmark Holqln
Denmark Vehicle

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, joint ventures or ather significant holdings.

12  Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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